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. No. Street/Site Name Town/Suburb Postcode
A d?jl:gss | 39 | Broughton Drive | Belmont || 3216 |
Site Name\ Christian College (Junior School) \
Description

The site at 39-47 Broughton Drive is characterised by three, two storey, unpainted dark brick, building wings with
hipped tiled roofs. Flat roofed two storey corridors link the flanking wings which have recessed traversing hipped
roofs and projecting bays (with courtyards between) towards the street frontage. Additional courtyards are formed
between these flanking wings and the central block, which is the dominant feature of the complex, with its wider
dimensions, symmetrical and prominent red brick chimneys and broken, and central, segmentally arched door
surround supported by elaborate consoles with decorative elements within. At the rear, additional two storey and
single storey red brick wings and outbuildings have hipped roofs and are clad in galvanised corrugated iron and
more recent colorbond. There is also a horizontal weatherboard outbuilding with a hipped roof, wide eaves and
exposed rafters.

This building complex is of a Georgian Revival style, which is not only characterised by the symmetry and hipped
forms, but also the rendered stringcourses, narrow eaves and regularly situated timber framed double hung
twelve paned windows.

The building complex is set in substantial grounds, entered through an unpainted dark brick pillared gateway to a
circular early concrete kerbed driveway. In the centre of the grounds is a Norfolk pine tree, while about the site
are at least nine substantial palm trees. Adjacent to the entrance gates is a mature cypress tree, the last
surviving tree of this species that once flanked the site along the northern and southern boundaries.

History

The building complex at 39-47 Broughton Drive was built in 1933 to the designs by Geelong architects Laird and Buchan as the Glastonbury
Children’s Home." This was the second location of the home, which had operated as the Protestant Orphan Asylum and Common School in
McCurdy Road, Fyansford, from 1855.2 The Glastonbury Home operated until the 1970s® and by the 1990s it had become the junior campus
of the Geelong Christian College. The idea of a new Home in Belmont originated in 1929, when the Glastonbury Committee launched an
appeal to raise the then massive sum of £30,000 required to build the Home on 30 acres of land.' On 24 February, 1929, Cr. S. Jacobs,
Mayor of Geelong, presided over a large public meeting, the result being that a large committee of local mayors and shire representatives be
appointed to manage the appeal.” Fundraising was carried out by several organisations, including the Freemasons of Geelong and District,
Geelong Churches and the State Government.® The Glastonbury Committee had initially decided to hold an architectural competition for a
suitable design for the Home, but on receiving the conditions for the competition from the Institute of Architects in September, 1929, they
decided to appoint Laird and Buchan, architects, instead." Indeed, Laird and Buchan had been the Honorary Architects for the Glastonbury
organisation for over 25 years." Prior to the commencement of building works, the access road was started and the exotic and sugar gum
trees and lambertianas were planted.’ The seedlings originated from the government nursery, as well as from the local nursery, ‘Stintons’." By
the 1990s, the complex and site had been sold to the Geelong Christian College. In 2002, Planning Permits were issued for the subdivision of
two small allotments on the northern side and for external improvements including landscaping and car parking.”
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No. Street/Site Name Town/Suburb Postcode
39 || Broughton Drive | Belmont | 3216 |

Site Name \ Christian College (Junior School) \

Site
Address

Comparative Listings

The layout of the building complex, whereby spatial blocks or pavilions are linked by corridors creating light
courts, has its origins in the cellular configuration of gaol designs in Britain, America and Australia, including
John Vailand’s Eastern State Penitentiary, Philadelphia, U.S.A., 1823-25, and Barney and Lewis’s Gaol of
Sydney, N.S.W., 1836.> More contemporary buildings designed in this layout include the East and West
Provisional Secretariat Blocks, Canberra, 1924-27, by John Smith Murdoch, Australia’s first Commonwealth
Government Architect.’

The Neo-Georgian style of the Glastonbury building complex had been revived by Hardy Wilson in 1919 in the
Journal of Proceedings of the Royal Victorian Institute of Architects.® A comparable design in the Georgian style
of the period is the Teachers’ College building, Armidale, N.S.W., 1929-30, by N.S.W. Government Architect,
Edwin Evan Smith.®

Statement of Cultural Significance

The building complex and site at 39-47 Broughton Drive is aesthetically significant at a STATE level. It demonstrates
original design qualities of the interwar Georgian Revival style. These qualities include the three, two storey, unpainted dark
brick, building pavilions with hipped tiled roofs which are linked by flat roofed two storey corridors. Other intact qualities
include the courtyards between the pavilions,unpainted red brick chimneys, broken segmentally arched door surround
supported by elaborate consoles with decorative elements within, general symmetry, rendered stringcourses, narrow eaves
and regularly situated timber framed double hung twelve paned windows, rear two storey and single storey red brick wings
and outbuildings with hipped galvanised corrugated roofs and the horizontal weatherboard outbuilding with a hipped roof,
wide eaves and exposed rafters. The sizeable grounds (although considerably subdivided in recent years), including the
Norfolk pine tree, palm trees, cypress trees and brick pillar gateway, make a substantial contribution to the aesthetic
significance of the place.

The building complex and site at 39-47 Broughton Drive are historically significant at a STATE level. They are associated
with the development of Orphanage Asylums and Children’s Homes in Victoria from 1855, and more particularly, with the
development of a Children’s Home in the 1930s which was largely funded by several non-Government organisations
throughout Geelong and district. The building complex is also associated with Laird and Buchan, architects.

The building complex and site at 39-47 Broughton Drive is socially significant at a REGIONAL level. While no longer
serving its original purpose, it is highly valued and still recognised by the community of the Geelong region as a former home
for children and presently as a Christian school.

Overall, the building complex and site at 39-47 Broughton Drive is of STATE significance.
It is highly recommended that a Conservation Management Plan be carried out on the property.
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